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our MiSSioN 
To help young children and families get the best start.

our ViSioN 
To be the leading developer and provider of parenting services for  
the benefit of young children and families.

our VAluES
Child focused – a belief that children’s rights are paramount

Family centred – fostering strengths-based, non-directive facilitation 

regardful – engendering respect, tolerance and non-judgmental listening 

responsive – displaying receptivity to community needs and issues

Accessible – ensuring equitable access, irrespective of means or cultural differences

innovative – learning and exploring possibilities creatively 

Quality-driven – promoting and providing safe, evidence-based practices

Accountable – being transparent; regularly reviewing and evaluating our services
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Every child and family deserves the best start possible…

thousands of families across Victoria face physical, psychological, intellectual or environmental 
issues that compromise their ability to nurture infants and young children.

as one of Victoria’s leading providers of parenting services, QEC has helped parents to 
manage challenges that arise during early parenthood for 90 years. all this time it has kept its 
finger on the community pulse – adapting its services to best meet the changing needs and 
emerging risks facing families.

QEC’s core business is to provide specialised care, support and education to families who 
are experiencing difficulties parenting their children from conception to age 4 years.

QEC advocates family-centred practices underpinned by a philosophy that family is the 
principal source of care for children. It offers services and programs that are culturally relevant 
and equally accessible to all clients.

residential, Day Stay, home visiting and telephone advice services are delivered at state-of-
the-art, purpose-built premises at noble park or through regional outreach bases at Morwell, 
Coburg, Wangaratta, Wodonga and Wonthaggi.

QEC is a registered public hospital and a body corporate with perpetual succession in 
accordance with the Health Services Act l988. the organisation is governed by a Board which 
has responsibility for overseeing hospital management and ensuring all services comply with the 
requirements of the act and QEC objectives, which are to:
n �develop parenting competence and confidence, enabling families to nurture and protect 

their children and to enhance family health and development;
n �enhance access to services by ensuring the availability of residential, Day Stay and home 

visiting services;
n �provide services that are individually and culturally sensitive to all families experiencing parenting 

difficulties, including those challenged by a disability or chronic illness, maternal depression, a 
substance dependency, adolescent parents or family members who do not speak English;

n �enable families to function independently within their own communities by maintaining 
productive linkages with community-based services;

n �promote community and professional awareness and knowledge about the care and nurture 
needs of  young children; and

n �respond to the changing needs of families by monitoring service effectiveness and quality, 

and by regular review and redevelopment.
the Minister for Community Services, the Hon lisa neville, has portfolio responsibility for 

QEC. Government policy and funding are administered through the Department of Human 
Services’ Division Children Youth and Families.

QEC endorses and participates in the achievement of national and state child health goals 
and targets to:
n �increase breast feeding and immunisation rates;
n �prevent illness and injury (accidental and non-accidental);
n �promote healthy nutrition, fitness and positive family functioning;
n �identify health and developmental problems early; and
n �facilitate early intervention.

Introduction
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“ I got to know my baby girl and she got to know her Dad …”
 ClIEnt FroM rESIDEntIal proGraM

5
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president’s report 

the 2007–08 year was one of celebration for QEC, as we recognised 
90 years of service to Victorian families.

QEC began in 1917 and has continually served the changing needs of 
Victorian families. In 2007–08 we continued to see demand for QEC services 
increase. this was aided by a rapid increase in Victoria’s birth rate and the 
boost to population growth in the key growth corridor in which we are 
located. We also saw an increase in the range of incidences of services offered 
to high-needs families.

Critical to our core parenting services is QEC’s relationship with the Victorian 
Department of Human Services (DHS). DHS supports QEC with funding and 
facilitates partnerships between our staff and Child protection. Importantly, 
QEC delivers the Government’s public policy position of putting the interests 
of the child first.

at our 90th birthday celebrations in november 2007, the Child Safety 
Commissioner Bernie Geary officially opened the Walter Jona Wing at QEC 
in noble park. this building expansion to our facilities gives more flexibility to 
the services QEC can offer, as well as enhancing the experience of our clients.

the QEC Foundation continued with its strong role in supporting the 
organisation, and I would like to thank the trustees for their commitment and 
contribution.

Equally important is our Board whose members bring a wealth of knowledge 
and experience to QEC. I thank them for their strong governance and 
leadership. I also acknowledge the fine service of one retiring Board Member 
Gaye Britt, and I welcome new member Jean andrews.

In a year of great achievements, it was also a challenging time for our financial 
performance. Many of the causes of this situation were, and remain outside 
the control of QEC. actions taken by management, together with some 
assistance from DHS, are expected to return QEC to a positive cash flow 
position in 2008–09.

as risk factors and challenges facing families increase, it is important we 
provide the right mix of skills and experience to assist. only through 
professional practice and by continuing to support our committed staff, will 
we improve their health and wellbeing. In providing another great year of 
service to Victorians, I thank our talented, passionate, caring and committed 
team for delivering outstanding service and outcomes.

I look forward to QEC continuing to provide high quality parenting services 
to more Victorian families, better than ever before.

 
 

Bruce Morley
prESIDEnt 



CEo’s report 

QEC continues with its strong history of servicing Victorian families 
experiencing complex challenges. the year 2007 marked a new phase in 
QEC’s history, where we celebrated 90 years of service with the opening of 
the building extensions. the new buildings will allow QEC to be more creative 
in its service models and will ensure families are in an environment that 
supports their needs.

last year, demand for QEC services continued to rise, as we experienced the 
flow-on effects of the Victorian baby boom. the location of QEC’s residential 
facility in noble park enhanced our access to families in a key Melbourne growth 
corridor and improved our access to Victoria’s new emerging communities. 

to meet the increasing demand for services, and those which were previously 
offered only through telephone consultation, we have added advice podcasts 
on our website. the podcasts address issues most commonly experienced by 
experienced by parents such as techniques such as techniques to get babies 
and toddlers to sleep.

QEC has also developed the Client assessment and Intake System (CaIS). 
this system is computer software that enhances the health professional’s 
ability to determine the most appropriate service for a client’s needs. It 
determines the risk factors for families based on available practice evidence 
regarding child outcomes.

DHS remains our primary funding partner and its support this past year 
ensured the continuation of our services to families. Working with DHS and 
Child protection means that together we ensure our services reach Victoria’s 
most vulnerable families.

QEC also continued its commitment to evidence-based practice with several 
independent studies reporting on the outcomes of our programs. In 2007, the 
Centre for Community Child Health (CCCH) presented its final evaluation 
reports on two of our programs.

a critical objective for QEC is to help families in their own home environment 
and we achieve this through our outreach programs. outreach staff face many 
challenges from working off-site and in remote areas, and QEC continues to 
assist them through safety initiatives and with communication and It solutions. 
taking these steps ensures our staff remain safe and are supported in their 
work with some of Victoria’s most vulnerable families.

QEC’s success is built on the quality and commitment of our highly skilled 
staff. they are passionate about their work and are a pleasure to work with. I 
would like to thank them all for their continued commitment and together we 
will will work to improve outcomes for all the Victorian children we support.

 
 

robyn Gillis
CHIEF ExECutIVE oFFICEr 
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robyn Gillis and Director 

of nursing, Sue Couper, 

celebrating 90 year of QEC 

history.
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patron: Mrs June Shaw
prESIDEnt: Mr Bruce Morley, Morley, B Com, arMtC, FCpa, FCIS, FaICD
VICE prESIDEntS: Ms Dale Fisher, rn, BBa, MBa, aFaCHSE 
 Mr Keith lambert, Grad Dip Bus admin, FSIa FaIB, FCIB (uK)
 Ms Susan Harper, oaM, Dip KtC, Grad Dip Education Studies 
 (Vice president from 29 october 2007)
 Ms Hannah Crawford, llB, B Com, Ca, F Fin (Vice president from 4 June 2008)
CHaIrMan FInanCE CoMMIttEE: 
 Mr Keith lambert, Grad Dip Bus admin, FSIa, FaIB, FCIB (uK)
 Ms Hannah Crawford, llB, B Com, Ca, F Fin (Chair from 4 June 2008)
CoMMIttEE MEMBErS: Ms Gaye Britt, MBa, B app Sc 
 Ms Hannah Crawford, llB, B Com, Ca, F Fin 
 Ms Susan Harper oaM, Dip KtC, Grad Dip Education Studies 
 Dr larry osborne, B Med Sc, MB BS, Dip Ed (tertiary)  
 associate professor Campbell paul, MBBS, FranZCp Cert Child &  
 adolescent psych
 Ms Shelley racine, Ba law 
 Mr antonio Salce, B Juri, llB 
 Mr timothy Staker, MBa, Grad Dip Bus (tech Mgmt),  
 Dip Eng (Biomed), Dip Eng (Electronic) 
 Dr lakshmi Sumithran, MBBS, MHa, FraCMa, FCHSE 
auDIt CoMMIttEE: Mr Keith lambert , Mr tim Staker, Mr Bruce Morley,  
 Ms Hannah Crawford (Committee Member from 4 June 2008)

Board of management members, office bearers & senior staff 

CHIEF ExECutIVE oFFICEr: Ms robyn Gillis, B Sc (Biol & Hlth Sci),  
 ass Dip occ Hlth & Safety, GaICD 
DIrECtor oF nurSInG: Ms Sue Couper, rn, rM, Dip app Sc (CHn) 
DIrECtor oF MEDICal SErVICES: Dr Gideon Saaroni, MBBS
CoMMErCIal ManaGEr: Ms liz Davenport, Grad Dip acc, B Bus (Mgt) Cpa
ManaGEr, opEratIonS SErVICES: Ms Janelle Crossett, adv Dip Bus Mgt
ManaGEr, ClInICal SErVICES: Ms Kirsty Evans, rn, rM, MCHn,  
 Grad Dip Sc (Hlth Ed & Hlth prom), Cert paeds
ManaGEr, outrEaCH SErVICES: Ms Sue Gardiner, rn, rM, MCHn,  
 B app Sc (Comm Health), IBClC
HonorarY SolICItorS: Mallesons Stephen Jaques
auDItorS: auditor-General Victoria 
BanKErS: national australia Bank limited

TAblE 1 boArD of MANAgEMENT ATTENDANCE 2007–08

boArD MEMbEr boArD MEETINgS MEETINgS ATTENDED

Ms g britt 10 8

Ms H Crawford (MEMBEr FroM 1/11/07) 7 7

Ms D fisher (lEaVE oF aBSEnCE FroM 5/12/07) 4 3

Ms S Harper 10 10

Mr K lambert (lEaVE oF aBSEnCE FroM 1/5/08) 9 7

Mr b Morley 10 8

Dr l osborne 10 9

Assoc Prof C Paul 10 9

Ms S racine 10 9

Mr A Salce 10 9

Mr T Staker 10 8

Dr l Sumithran 10 8
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PlaySteps Program 
gippsland region

Clinical family 
Counsellor

residential Programs

Noble Park Day Stay

* * paSDS parenting assessment & Skill Development Services

Sub-CoMMITTEES:  
Executive, remuneration, finance, Conference, 
research, Education & Development, Audit, QA & risk

boArD of MANAgEMENT

CHIEf EXECuTIVE offICEr

Clinical Education 
Coordinator

Coordinator,  
research

Networks, Partnerships 
& Service Development

PlaySteps Program 
Southern region

DIrECTor of 
NurSINg

QA & risk Management 
Program Coordinator

Director,  
Medical Services

Manager, finance & 
Commercial Services

Senior Accounts Clerk

Contracts Management

facilities Management

occupational Health 
& Safety

Manager,  
Clinical Services

Assessment & Intake

Manager,  
operations Support

boM Secretariat

IT Administration

Health Information

Human resources

Pr & Marketing

reception & 
Administration

Manager,  
outreach Services

EHV latrobe City

latrobe City  
Innovations Project

Noble Park & Northern 
Parenting Plus

Parenting Plus & Day 
Stay, Hume region

External Professional 
Education

My time Southern & 
gippsland region

faHCSIA Program

Home-based PASDS* 
(Southern, Northern, 

gippsland, Hume regions)

QEC organisation Chart
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Image from the ‘Welcome to Country’ ceremony at 
QEC’s 90th birthday celebration.
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QEC programs and services     

Child centred, family focused practice
QEC designs and delivers programs that apply a practice model which acknowledges parenting 
assistance and intervention within a family context.

Every family situation is different, and therefore, QEC support is provided in a way that is 
flexible, individualised, responsive and both supports and strengthens family functioning.

Staff and families or carers work together to determine and set goals, solve problems and 
put solutions or practices into action. It involves engaging with families in a sensitive way that 
identifies and builds on their strengths and current parenting practices.

Key components of the child centred, family focused approach are: acknowledging the family 
goals, needs and desires; working to increase family competencies and problem solving skills; and 
helping families build their own social resource networks. 

programs delivered in 2007–08   

Core programs and services 
under a Health Service agreement, the Victorian Government Department of Human Services’ 
Children Youth and Families Division funds the following QEC parenting services:
n telephone consultation, assessment and intake (location: noble park; Catchment: Victoria);
n 5 Day (live in) residential program (location: noble park; Catchment: Victoria);
n �Day Stay program (location: noble park; Catchment: Victoria: location: Wangaratta; 

Catchment: Eastern Hume region);
n �parenting plus, Home-Based (location: noble park, Morwell, Wangaratta; Catchments: 

Southern metropolitan region, City of latrobe, Eastern Hume region);
n parenting assessment and Skills Development Services (paSDS) –
ß residential (Base: noble park; Catchment: Victoria).
ß Home-based (Gippsland region, Southern, north and West metropolitan regions, Eastern 
Hume region); and

n My time (locations: noble park and Morwell).

parenting initiatives in the community
QEC continues to provide additional innovative services to communities which are funded 
through local and Commonwealth governments, community service organisations or agencies, 
and philanthropic sources. last year these included: 
n �parenting plus phase �, refugee play and parenting group program (Dandenong);
n �parenting plus (Eastern, north and West metropolitan regions, Wodonga, towong, Indigo, 

City of Greater Dandenong, Casey and Cardinia);
n �playSteps (noble park and City of latrobe/Morwell);
n �Education services including professional seminars and professional development workshops; 

and
n �Communities for Children Initiative – a childbirth preparation program that helps parents 

prepare for the future relationship with their child (Southern region). 

TAblE 2 ADMITTED ClIENTS To PArENTINg  
INTErVENTIoN SErVICES, 2006–08

SEPArATIoNS 2006–07 2007–08

Same day 916 1109

Multi day 1608 1657

Total Separations 2524 2766

TAblE 3 oCCASIoNS of SErVICE for NoN-ADMITTED PATIENTS, 
2006–08

NoN-ADMITTED PATIENTS – oTHEr SErVICES 
– PArENTINg INTErVENTIoN SErVICES

 
2006–07

 
2007–08

outpatient services – all regions 4021 3909

Day Stay sessions – Wangaratta 133 136

PlaySteps – Noble Park & Morwell 43 249

MyTime – Noble Park, Morwell & Wonthaggi 304

Total occasions of service 4197 4598



11

Table 4 Families by program and locaTion, 2007–08

service Type program and locaTion 2007–08

residential early parenting noble park 555

parenting assessment & skill development services (pasds) – noble park1 121

day stay noble park 495

Wangaratta 60

Home visiting enhanced maternal child Health (emcH) 67

Home-based parenting plus 
 
 
 

southern metropolitan region dHs parenting plus 40

southern metropolitan region – Facs-funded parenting plus phase3 6

northern metropolitan region2 2

Upper Hume region 9

intergrated Family services (iFs) Wodonga 10

latrobe iFs 41

Home-based pasds 
 
 
 

Upper Hume region 13

gippsland region 29

northern metropolitan region  42

southern metropolitan region 58

playsteps noble park – participants3   212

morwell – participants4 37

culturally & linguistically diverse (cald) noble park – participants5 1791

my Time 
 
 

noble park – participants6 87

morwell – participants7 160

Wonthaggi – participants8 57

Telephone advice only From noble park assessment & intake 1941

Total 5833

2007-08 QEC annual rEport

1. 125 families were contracted to DHS and of the offered positions, 121 were utilised
2. northern metropolitan region ceased april 2008 

playSteps program is an 8-week group program with participants attending weekly
3. noble park program consists of 64 sessions with an average family attendance of 3.3 
4. Morwell program consists of 8 sessions with an average family attendance of 4.6 

CalD program
5. noble park program consists of 80 sessions with an average family attendance of 22

My time program 
6. noble park program consists of 64 sessions with an average family attendance of 1.3
7. Morwell program consists of 36 sessions with an average family attendance of 4.4
8. Wonthaggi program consists of 57 sessions with an average family attendance of 1.5
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Who we help 

QEC provides its services to a range of parents, carers and families living across Victoria. QEC 
services are for carers with children up to four years of age. 

last year the majority (90 per cent) of carers and parents QEC supported were between 
21 and 40 years of age. those over 40 years accounted for 7 per cent and those under 20 made 
up three per cent of clients. over 60 per cent of children seen by QEC were infants aged less 
than 12 months. the balance comprised 17 per cent of children between 12 and 18 months, 
and 2� per cent over 18 months old.

reaching across Victoria
QEC parenting services were provided to families across Victoria, with concentrations from 
metropolitan Melbourne, Gippsland and the north East regions.

Families statewide can access residential programs, whereas Day Stay programs in noble 
park and Wangaratta service local communities or families living within a reasonable travel 
distance. More than half the families admitted to these programs were from the Southern 
metropolitan region, fifty-four per cent were from the Eastern metropolitan region and 12 per 
cent from north and West metropolitan areas. regional Victorian families comprised around 10 
per cent of QEC’s total noble park service recipients.

Home-based services cover geographic areas specified in funding agreements and last year 
were supplied to Southern, north and West metropolitan, Gippsland and north-Eastern Hume 
regions.

risks on the rise 

QEC’s new assessment and intake software, CaIS, has enabled the centre to identify risk factors 
that impede child development and positive parenting outcomes. 

Since CaIS was introduced in January 2008, QEC has managed 1051 calls. of those calls, 
25 per cent were referred to a 5 Day residential program and 14 per cent were referred to a 
Day Stay program. Sixty-one per cent of Sixty-one per cent of callers received advice only and 
were referred back to universal services. 

During telephone consultations, 44 per cent of clients have disclosed a history of 
depression, three per cent disclosed previous involvement with Child protection and three per 
cent disclosed domestic violence. only one per cent of clients identified the use of drugs. 

Families participating in paSDS and parenting plus programs showed an increase in all risk 
factors except in the category of ‘previous child removed/deceased’.

Clients identified as ‘low cognitive functioning’ increased by almost 50 per cent and the 
families continue to identify as ‘chaotic and unstable’.

Incidences of family violence, mental illness and parental substance abuse continue to rise. 
From our experience and research, we know these factors have significant adverse affects on 
the ability to parent effectively.
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TAblE 5 rISK fACTorS IN fAMIlIES IN PASDS AND  
PArENTINg PluS ProgrAMS (All rEgIoNS), 2007–08

 
rISKS

HoME-bASED 
PASDS

rESIDENTIAl 
PASDS

PArENTINg 
PluS

 
ToTAl

A previous child removed/
deceased

39 61 0 100 

Aboriginal 6 9 3 18

Child protection history 76 85 11 172

Domestic violence 83 74 19 176

family chaotic/unstable 98 66 75 239

family isolated/fragmented 69 44 65 178

Homelessness/frequent moves 45 45 43 133

Mother < 20 at birth of first child 69 59 54 182

Mother < 20 years of age 53 28 33 114

opiate dependency 19 27 21 67

Parent low cognitive functioning 22 24 52 98

Parental history of abuse as child 62 41 0 103

Parental intellectual disability 18 18 12 48

Parental mental illness 79 58 0 137

Parental substance abuse 91 81 70 242

Single parent 88 69 73 230

access to QEC services  
in 2007–08     

the challenge for QEC is ensuring its limited resources are allocated appropriately and that its 
services reach the most vulnerable families. In a time of rising birth rates and complex family 
situations, it is a balance that is both increasingly important and difficult to achieve. 

to improve how services are delivered to clients, QEC developed and introduced the Client 
assessment and Intake System (CaIS). CaIS is computer software that supports staff in their 
decision making and record keeping during the assessment and intake processes. the system is 
based on the published academic literature on risk factors and protective factors for outcomes 
for children from birth to three years of age. 

CaIS guides practitioners in their questioning and decision making with a client and 
calculates a numeric risk assessment for that client. QEC uses the risk assessment to prioritise 
and allocate clients to its programs. records of client risk profiles are kept and can be used to 
analyse the risk profile of a community requesting QEC services. 

By using CaIS, QEC has improved its ability to support the most vulnerable families who 
come seeking support and can understand where there is unmet demand.

telephone consultations 
telephone consultation is the main way for families to access QEC services.

QEC is funded to support less than 1000 calls for assessment and intake, yet demand saw it 
provide over ��87 telephone consultations to families last year.

For families who called, 671 received admission to the residential program and 495 
attended a Day Stay service. the remaining 1941 received telephone advice. 

recognising its limited capacity to provide services to all families, QEC posted advice 
podcasts on its website. parents can now listen to information on sleep and settling without 
having to wait for a return phone call from the centre.

Individual CaIS scores were used to prioritise access to QEC programs. analysis of CaIS 
data showed families with an average score of 9 or above were allocated a residential service. 
Families with an average score between 5 and 9 were allocated a Day Stay service. 

Data analysis also identified that 1220 families with average risk score from 0 to 5 were 
unable to be offered further service delivery after the telephone consultation. the academic 
research supporting the CaIS system indicates that the long term outcomes for the children of 
these families would have been enhanced if an episode of service had been provided. 

the remaining 1084 families with average scores of 0 or less where identified as having the 
ContInuED on paGE 16
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QEC celebrated an important milestone.  
Its 90-year anniversary of supporting and 

working with Victorian families.

Last November, over 150 staff, client families and 
organisation partners joined QEC in a day of birthday 
celebrations which also marked the opening of new 
building facilities at the Noble Park site. The new 
facilities are a major extension to residential, 
group and consulting areas, to help QEC service 
increasing demand.
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90th Birthday and Grand Opening

QEC’s origins go 
back to 1917 with the Victorian Baby 
Health Centre Association (VBHCA) 
and the opening of its first Baby Health 
Centre in Richmond. In the 1950s, 
VBHCA gained new premises in 
Carlton and a new name, the Queen 
Elizabeth Maternal and Child Health 
Centre. 

The Commissioner for the Office of Child Safety Mr 
Bernie Geary OAM officially opened the Walter Jona 

Wing. Mrs Alwynne Jona OAM attended on behalf 
of her late husband Sir Walter Jona, a long time 

friend and supporter or QEC. 

An afternoon of festivity included multicultural 
performances, with a Koori dance group, Japanese 

drummers, Sierra Leone choir, and an Australian musical 
duo and clown performance.

Ninety live butterflies were released during the afternoon, 
representing QEC’s brand of fragility, nurturing and beauty. 

In 1986, the centre was renamed the 
Queen Elizabeth Centre and in 1998 moved its 
operations to purpose-built premises in Noble 
Park.  

Ninety years on, QEC is proud of its ongoing role 
in helping Victorian families.
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FroM paGE 1�
protective factors to promote resilience in children that results in better life outcomes, despite 
parenting concerns at the time of contact. 

TAblE 6 fAMIlIES ADMITTED To rESIDENTIAl AND DAy STAy 
SErVICES AT NoblE PArK: PErCENTAgE DISTrIbuTIoN by 
HoME loCATIoN (DHS rEgIoN), 2007–08

DHS rEgIoN 2006–07 %

barwon South region 3 0.25

Eastern metropolitan region 275 23.58

gippsland region 51 4.37

grampians region 15 1.29

Hume region 24 2.06

loddon region 12 1.03

North and Western metropolitan region 140 12.01

other regions 7 0.6

Southern metropolitan region 639 54.8

Total 1166 100

professional referrals to QEC
professional referrals are an important way for QEC to reach vulnerable families and prioritise 
services for them. last year, QEC received more referrals from professionals than the previous year.

Maternal and Child Health nurses accounted for 4� per cent of referrals. this group is the 
main source of referral to QEC’s residential and Day Stay programs.

ten per cent of referrals were from Child protection and six per cent were from medical 
practitioners. 

More help at home
Increasingly, evidence supports home-based services as an effective way to engage high risk, 
vulnerable families and QEC’s outreach services recognise that families who find it difficult to 
get to QEC noble park still deserve access to services. 

In 2007–08, QEC home-based services were available in the rural districts of Gippsland 
and Hume and some Southern, Eastern and northern suburbs. QEC has provided Home-
Based programs throughout the year, with client participation increasing by �6 per cent in the 
northern metropolitan region and 25 per cent in the Gippsland region. 

the two Home-Based programs offered are: 
n Parenting Plus
a highly intensive, specialised parenting skills program for families experiencing significant 
parenting difficulties and where risk factors predirective of poor child outcomes are present. 
With the support of staff, parents identify their area of need and create individualised plans that 
build on a family’s strengths.

n Parenting Assessment and Skills Development Service (PASDS)
this intensive parenting assessment and skills development program was established to help 
high-risk families in Child protection. It involves in-home monitoring and assessment, short-
term skill development interventions and long-term (up to 12 weeks) assessment and skill 
development. assessments cover not only parents’ current parenting competencies, but also 
their capacity to learn and enhance their skills.

21% gippsland region

TAblE 7 fAMIlIES AT CoMbINED QEC NoblE PArK AND rEgIoNAl 
SErVICES (rESIDENTIAl, DAy STAy AND HoME-bASED 
ProgrAMS): PErCENTAgE DISTrIbuTIoN by HoME 
loCATIoN (DHS rEgIoN), 2007–08

51% 
Southern metropolitan region 

13% Eastern 
metropolitan 
region

8%  North and Western metropolitan region

5% Hume region

1% grampians region

1% loddon region
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Supporting families with a disability
QEC introduced My time, a group program to support parents of children aged 0–5 years 
with a disability or chronic medical illness. the My time program provides families with the 
opportunity for support and connections with other parents.

last year My time worked with approximately 87 families at QEC’s noble park, Morwell 
and Wonthaggi sites. With 217 groups conducted in total across all sites. Gippsland programs 
were conducted in partnership with locally based community service organisation, noah’s ark.

Giving infants the best start possible
Children under 6 months of age continue to account for just over 60 per cent of the children 
serviced by QEC. In addition, there was a four per cent increase in the numbers of children over 
12 months of age who received services. 

In the residential paSDS program, �1 per cent of the children who attended were between 
0–4 weeks of age, 27 per cent were 4–1� weeks old and �5 per cent �–12 months old. these 
figures are fairly consistent across all DHS regions and demonstrate a need to provide early 
intervention to children at risk.

Victoria’s growing cultural diversity 
QEC provides services to Victoria’s growing multicultural community who share different 
backgrounds, experiences and languages.

last year, just over 12 per cent of adults in residential or Day Stay programs were born 
overseas showing a 2 per cent increase from the previous years. of these clients over three per 
cent speak a language other than English in their homes, mainly Chinese, Hebrew or turkish.

Successful play and parenting education groups continued to be run for afghan and 
Sudanese families at noble park. QEC conducted 80 groups involving 1791 participants. the 
groups were funded by FaHCSIa and were co-facilitated by community leaders and QEC 
parenting plus staff.

QEC also continued working with key organisations through partnership initiatives to 
improve access to parenting support services for Victoria’s Indigenous australians and torres 
Strait Islanders. these successful networks enabled QEC to provide services to a greater 
number of aboriginal families, with a five-fold increase in the number, to 11 families for the 
period.

TAblE 9 AgES of CHIlDrEN ADMITTED To ProgrAMS, 2007–08

AgES of CHIlDrEN ADMITTED  
To NoblE PArK ProgrAMS (N=1381)

AgES of CHIlDrEN ADMITTED  
To PASDS ProgrAMS (N=421)

AgES % AgES %

<12mths 61 0–4 weeks 31

12–18mths 17 4–13 weeks 27

>18mths 22 3–12 months 35

>12 months 7

Total 100 100

TAblE 8 SEPArATIoNS of fAMIlIES froM PASDS  
             by rEfErrINg rEgIoN, 2007–08

 
rEfErrINg DHS rEgIoN

rESIDENTIAl 
PASDS 2007—08

HoME-bASED 
PASDS 2007—08

Eastern metropolitan region 23 -

gippsland region 7 29

grampian, loddon & other regions 15 -

Hume region - 13

Northern metropolitan region 27 42

Southern metropolitan region 49 58

Total 121 142

125 families were contracted to DHS and of the offered positions, 121 were utilised.
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Creating a safe workplace 

the health and safety of QEC staff and clients is the number-one priority at QEC, and it 
continually looks for ways to improve their safety and well-being.

although the incident rate is low, occupational violence is the most significant risk to QEC 
staff. QEC’s residential staff are supplied with a wireless communication duress system which 
quickly connects staff with Victoria police. It combines a nurse call, telephony and duress system 
in the one handset carried by staff. outreach staff also have a phone system that integrates 
telephony, GpS positioning and direct duress contact with Victoria police.

QEC reported 89 incidents during 2007–08. no serious injuries or incidents were reported 
and 10 reports related to minor injuries. the other reported incidents relate to near misses, 
property damage or neighbourhood complaints.

Feedback from clients is an essential part of how we improve the quality and effectiveness 
of QEC’s services and programs. Eight complaints were logged last year and the main theme 
related to demand for services resulting in increased waiting periods for access to various 
programs. 

partnerships 

Forming partnerships with community and government ensures QEC can provide more 
Victorian families with access to its services.

these partnerships have improved QEC’s understanding of local area services and built 
sustainable, robust family support systems. It has also fostered good communication with 
consideration and respect amongst local service providers.

partnerships with ChildFIrSt Integrated Family Service provide more regional Victorian 
families access to the Home-Based parenting plus program, while a contract with the City of 
latrobe improved outreach access to specialised QEC services through the Enhanced Maternal 
and Child Health Service.

Collaboration is consistent with recent legislative changes which advocate pathways that 
connect vulnerable children and families to the prevention and early intervention services they 
may need.

nEW partnErSHIpS In 2007–08 

Child FIrSt alliance
QEC has joined the Victorian Government Child FIrSt initiative, forming alliances with other 
family service organisations, health, education, community service providers, local government 
and other community leaders. During 2007–08 QEC joined Child FIrSt alliances in:
n �Casey, Cardinia and City of Greater Dandenong; 
n �latrobe / Baw Baw; and
n �Wodonga, towong and Indigo.

Child FIrSt alliances are Child and Family Information referral and Support teams. these 
teams are legally authorised to receive referrals from anyone in the community who has 
significant concerns about the wellbeing of a child. the Victorian Government has funded the 
establishment of Child FIrSt alliances.

Child FIrSt sites build on the Family Support Innovations projects. Each site will provide 
communities with a visible point of entry into a strengthened and more integrated secondary 
service platform on a sub-regional basis. 

to support the effective operation of family services, child and family service alliances have 
been established at a sub-regional catchment level to inform the important functions of planning 
for a more integrated and coordinated service system; developing processes and procedures for 
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assessment, intake, prioritisation and allocation of clients to family services; and service delivery 
coordination.

Child FIrSt sites are an initiative resulting from the Victorian Government’s Every Child 
Every Chance’ reforms under the Children, Youth and Families Act 2005 (CYFa). Coming into 
effect in april 2007, this new legislation focuses on service response that is based on assessment, 
planning and action to ensure all children and young people have access to nurturing and 
stimulating environments in which to grow and reach their full potential. 

More Child FIrSt sites will be rolled out over the next three years as the Victorian 
Government continues to work with early childhood and community services, to build a reliable 
network of services that collaborate to connect families to the services and supports they need. 

Continuing partnerships 
supporting regional care  

Best Start 
Best Start is a program that aims to improve the health, development, learning and well being of 
all children from pregnancy through to transition at school (0–8 years) across Victoria.

QEC is a signatory to the Best Start partnership agreement with other health, education, 
community service providers, local government, parents and community leaders in:
n �latrobe City;
n �City of Greater Dandenong; and
n �aboriginal Best Start, City of Greater Dandenong and Casey.

Integrated Family Services latrobe/Baw Baw (IFS) and  
Child FIrSt (formerly known as Family Matters which serviced  
the City of latrobe and family services in Baw Baw) 
the QEC Gippsland team has continued to provide Home-Based parenting plus programs in 
the City of latrobe, with 41 families completing the program last year.

the service was funded as part of the Family Matters Innovations program since 2004. In 
2008 Child FIrSt and Integrated Family Services latrobe/Baw Baw was established and the 
new service has built on the previous service structure in latrobe, and now incorporates family 
services in Baw Baw.

the Child FIrSt Integrated Family Services latrobe/Baw Baw alliance is a partnership 
between anglicare Victoria, Berry Street Victoria, Quantum Support Services, QEC, ramahyuck 
District aborginal Corporation (Wanjana lidj), West Gippsland Healthcare Group and the 
Department of Human Services. 

the Child FIrSt Integrated Family Services latrobe/Baw Baw alliance has developed to 
progress the implementation of the Children Youth and Families Act 2005 and to provide services 
to the catchment of latrobe and Baw Baw municipalities. the Department of Human Services 
has funded the alliance to work collaboratively with Child protection and provide a stronger 
and more responsive service system across the catchment. 

upper Eastern Hume – parenting plus 
this program formed part of the ‘early years’ component of the Stronger Family Services 
Innovations project in Wodonga and the Shires of Indigo and towong. the QEC Hume team 
operates the service from Wodonga and last year parenting plus was completed by 11 families. 

parenting plus was offered in partnership with a range of agencies including lead 
organisation and funds administrator, upper Murray Family Care. Contracted fellow partners 
include Central Hume Support Service, upper Hume Community Health Service, City of 
Wodonga, and Indigo and towong Shire Councils. 
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outcomes focus 
 

QEC continues to focus on effective facilitation of positive outcomes for 
families and children participating in its services. Helping families achieve 
the best start for their children follows on from QEC’s commitment to 
supporting and developing staff in implementing proven practice and regularly 
reviewing its performance.

Evidence-based practice
QEC’s commitment to implementing world’s best practice and the regular review of its work, 
positions the organisation as a leader and innovator in the early childhood services sector. QEC’s 
focus on outcomes and maintaining quality improvements means it remains responsive to the 
changing needs of all its stakeholders.

Its regular review and evaluation of programs means QEC remains accountable and 
transparent to its clients, communities, supporters and government. 

QEC’s commitment to regular quality improvement means that it can verify meeting its 
regulatory and funding obligations as well as its own objectives. 

QEC invests in the support and development of its valued staff. Implementing proven and 
safe practice based on current thinking and approaches means that QEC gives families access to 
consistent, high quality programs.

International publication of QEC’s Work
In october 2007, QEC received international acknowledgement of its work in the Journal 
of Paediatric Psychology. the research article was authored by Dr louise Hayes and titled 
‘a randomised Controlled trial of a Mother-Infant or toddler program Demonstrating the 
Effectiveness in practice’. It was published for the Society of pediatric psychology by oxford 
university press.

program evaluations completed
the Centre for Community Child Health (CCCH) continues to evaluate QEC’s services. In 
2007 two final evaluation reports were provided.

StrEnGtHEnInG MultICultural FaMIlIES
In December 2007, the CCCH delivered its final evaluation report on QEC’s implementation 
of violence prevention parenting training program, Strengthening Multi Ethnic Families, in the 
australian context. overall the program was found to successfully address the ethnic and 
cultural roots of families, and this assisted in engaging parents to explore alternative parenting 
styles relevant to life and values in australia.
the evaluation identified the following key learnings: 
n �to promote practices such as positive discipline methods with parents from diverse 

backgrounds, it is essential that facilitators have a cross-cultural understanding of child-
rearing beliefs and practices;

n �the use of peer community members in delivering parenting programs for multi ethnic families 
can help parents both celebrate their own traditions and accept those within australia;

n �conflict with child rearing practices requires making sure that those supporting multi ethnic 
families, such as teachers or early childhood workers, are aware of cultural differences in 
parenting;

n �service providers, settlements services and families need clear and accurate information 
about harsh discipline methods and other child protection issues;

n �parenting support programs for newly arrived families cannot be divorced from tackling 
broader health and social needs. there is scope for the program to adopt a flexible 
approach and expand on the program curriculum to respond to the specific needs of 
cultural groups; and

n �to engage all parents regardless of education background, parenting manuals and handouts 
should be translated into appropriate languages, reflect australian English and include a 
greater number of the practical tasks from the program curriculum.

parEntInG pluS, pHaSE � 
In March 2008, the CCCH delivered the final evaluation report on the outcomes of QEC’s 
parenting plus program, phase �. this involved testing enhancements to the core home visiting 
program model to effectively engage and build capacity in recently arrived afghan and South 
Sudanese communities.

QEC was found to have developed respectful relationships with participants and 
encouraged their involvement in how the program is delivered. the centre also employed and 
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developed peer leaders and this was found to be integral to engaging and building capacity in 
the target communities.

the evaluation identified the following key learnings:
n �collaboration with other agencies is essential to providing responsive and accessible services;
n �developing and maintaining a skilled workforce contributes to high-quality services for families;
n �playgroups provide an effective platform to link families with the broader service system;
n �facilitated playgroups successfully engage newly arrived communities and addresses social 

isolation; and
n �provision of infrastructure, such as transport and an appropriate venue, is critical.
Integration of direct service provision and community building increases effectiveness of 
programs for CalD families.

program evaluations in progress
the parenting research Centre’s evaluation of the outcomes of QEC’s therapeutic playgroup 
program, playSteps, extends over a three-year period. the study, funded by the tattersall’s 
Foundation, follows 40 families during and after their involvement with the program. the early 
interim evaluation report demonstrates positive program impacts on maternal mental health. 
the final report is due in early 2010.

Innovation 

QEC has continued its commitment to innovation during 2007–08. In addition to reviewing and 
developing current service models and practice approaches, QEC successfully established two 
new major innovations:

promoting attachment in the antenatal period for at risk mothers.
QEC won a major grant from the lord Mayor’s Charitable Fund to conduct a pilot study 
on supporting and partnering with vulnerable families, starting at the antenatal period and 
extending 18 months after birth.

the program will see QEC work with vulnerable, high risk families as they transition into 
parenthood. the program is relationship-based and delivered in group and home visiting settings 
with a focus on building the parent-child relationship. 

Engaging with families pre-birth uses the window of opportunity, during pregnancy when 
parents are highly motivated to prepare for the future relationship with their child. By working 
with vulnerable families early-on, QEC can strengthen parent-child interactions to increase 
resilience in children and help improve other family outcomes. 

QEC’s innovative antenatal model integrates two nCaSt evidence-based programs, 
Maternal Mental Health in pregnancy and Keys to Caregiving. nCaSt programs focus on 
facilitating parents’ understanding of their infant as a social partner. parents learn how to 
understand and interpret the complex behaviour of their infants, get to know their baby more 
quickly and provide sensitive, responsive, growth-fostering care.

this project aligns with the Children, Youth and Families Act 2005, which allows the referral 
of an unborn child considered at risk of poor life outcomes and addresses an identified gap in 
service response pre-birth.

Findings from the pilot study will be shared with the early childhood services sector through 
QEC’s professional development work and its Biennial International Conference in 2010.

Supporting QEC staff to reflect on working in partnership with families
QEC engaged the uK-based Centre for parent and Child Support (CpCS) to conduct a pilot 
study to support staff working with families. In partnership with QEC, CpCS will explore 
effective support for staff in implementing the proven family partnership model. 

all QEC staff participated in family partnership training, which assists them to understand, 
analyse and find solutions for more effective relationships with families. Early childhood research 

lord Mayor So presenting  
robyn Gillis the award 

pHoto: StEVEn paM, SMart SHotS
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suggests a link exists between the quality of relationships among staff and the relationships they 
build with parents and children. these relationships are characterised by trust, support and 
continued growth and development and at QEC, this is central to its core business and forms 
the foundation of all its work. 

reflective practice is an integral component of support offered to QEC staff as they 
support parents and parents support their children. taking time to reflect helps QEC staff step 
back from the immediate, intense experience of their work with families and consider what the 
experience really means for themselves and the families. through reflection, staff can examine 
the thoughts and feelings of experiences and identify ways to develop techniques which 
enhance their work with colleagues and families. 

reflective capacity is enhanced when real-time interactions are captured and used to help 
individuals see and understand their behaviour. through its work with nCaSt evidence-based 
tools, QEC uses video to support and enhance the guidance of parent interactions with their 
child. In the staff reflective practice pilot, staff will use video footage of their work with families 
to guide reflections on their approaches. 

the innovation of using video technology to support and enhance staff reflections is 
an exciting step for QEC and the Centre for parent and Child Support. Employing video 
technology and Skype conferencing to support staff supervision and development, provides 
stronger links for remotely employed outreach staff across the organisation. 

the head of CpCS, Dr Crispin Day, will present outcomes from the pilot study at QEC’s 
Fifth Biennial International Conference in november 2008. 

 

talented and diverse staff 

QEC employs a talented, highly skilled and diverse team. passionate and committed, these 
professionals provide the core strength of the organisation. QEC owes much of its reputation to 
its loyal and dedicated staff.

the breadth of diverse experience and skills equips QEC to work in partnership with 
parents facing many different, complex needs and challenges, to support the best interests of 
children. Staff do this in an open, honest, respectful way that encourages and empowers clients 
to care for their children. 

the majority of staff are Early parenting practitioners (45.2 per cent) and have qualifications and 
experience in early childhood, early intervention, education and Mothercraft nursing. team leaders 
and Coordinators make up �4.5 per cent of the QEC workforce and have backgrounds in nursing, 
psychology, social work, early childhood education, drug and alcohol counselling and family therapy. 

the diversity of staff skills increases QEC’s ability to effectively meet the needs of families 

‘ Staff were very welcoming, calm and knowledgeable.  
Very reassuring – excellent rapport and listening.’ 
 – DaYStaY ClIEnt FEEDBaCK

TAblE 10 CoMPoSITIoN of QEC STAff AS AT 30 JuNE 2008

 
 
 
ProgrAM

JuNE CurrENT 
MoNTH – full-
TIME EMPloyEES 

(fTE)

 
 

JuNE yEAr To 
DATE – fTE

 
JuNE CurrENT 
MoNTH HEAD 

CouNT

Administration/finance 7.8 7.8 8

Chief Executive officer 1 1 1

Director of Medical Services 0.53 0.53 1

Director of Nursing 1 1 1

Early Parenting Practitioners  
(InCl. MotHErCraFt nurSES)

32.1 33.81 60 

Health Information Manager 0.2 01 0

Managers 4 4 4

Program Coordinators/Team leaders  
(InCl. MatErnal & CHIlD HEaltH nurSES)

24.6 25.81 39 

Social Worker 1 0.75 1

Total 72.23 74.7 115

1. the duties of Health Information Manager are now provided by outsourced contractor services
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facing challenging issues. Client feedback reports that staff members’ ability to understand, not 
pass judgement, be flexible, respect, reassure and collaborate with families, are the most valued 
part of QEC programs.

QEC staff professional development
Support and development of QEC staff helps engage and sustain strong relationships with 
families and facilitates strong parent-child relationships. 

a large focus of staff professional development is the intensive preparation of the QEC 
workforce required to intervene effectively in the parent-child relationship. Staff are trained 
in the proven relationship-based models of Family partnership and the nCaSt Keys to 
Caregiving. Managers, Educators, team leaders and Coordinators participate in annual reliability 
recertification to administer evidence-based assessment tools. 

Enhancing the way QEC develops and supports staff to perform relationship-focused work 
led it to strengthen the reflective capacity of the organisation. Involvement in relationship-based 
work demands taking time-out to stand back, reflect and review how QEC works with families 
on a regular basis. QEC education staff facilitate reflective supervision and practice development 
to build and extend staff understanding, knowledge and skills.

Everyday offers variety, learning and 
the chance to make a difference for 
Rosemary, QEC’s home visit and 
refugee program co-ordinator

I see many different people at the 
beginning and the end of their time with us 
and you really do see positive steps that, even 
if small, are real changes.

Sometimes mums can’t see it, but I can. 
Just by the look on their faces or how they’re 
talking. It might be the smallest thing like having 
the confidence to walk down to the shops and 
back and it makes a difference to their lives.

It’s a totally different way of working 
at QEC and one that draws on people’s 
strengths.

We’ve also got time to engage with 
families. the beauty of that is we can actually 
sit down together and talk before we start.

It’s very special to be let into people’s 
lives at a time when they’re struggling or most 
vulnerable. We come in and are with them 
through their journey.

Home visits really tell the story. You see 
people in their own environment and they’re 
more themselves.

We see many different people facing 
different challenges in different places.

What never changes is that you’ve got 
to listen. Sometimes that’s all people need. 
Someone that listens and helps us to believe 
in ourselves.

Spending time with our refugee 
playgroups is really interesting and so 
rewarding for me. our parenting experiences 
are so different and you can’t imagine the 
hardships people have faced.

life in australia is challenging and our 
playgroups help our refugee families settle in.

Getting together to talk with other 
women has also helped some of our families 
who were depressed.

the kids are wonderful and our music 
group gets everyone mixing together. the 
mums love to dance and encourage us to join 
in too.

I’ve learned so much from these women 
too – seeing their strength and realising you’ve 
got to relax and can’t always get stuck on 
procedures. It reminds me that there is always 
another way of doing things, another way of 
seeing things. ’’
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Sharing know-how and ideas  

Strengthening professional knowledge and skills in the early childhood  
and parenting sector

QEC shares the outcomes of its research initiatives and evidence-based practices with the early 
parenting sector through its education activities. It partners with research institutions, public and 
private sector health and welfare professionals, local governments and communities, to promote 
the sharing of knowledge, set standards and lead change in caring for young children.

Demand for QEC’s professional development services rose dramatically over 2007–08. 
QEC delivered 96 workshops to a total of 1504 people, an increase of �00 per cent on the 
previous year. 

participants included nurses, social workers, psychologists, therapists, family workers, 
teachers and childcare workers. these professionals worked in areas such as universal and 
enhanced maternal and child health, primary health, early education and intervention, family and 
children’s services. the workshops covered professional development topics which included: 
nCaSt, Keys to Caregiving and parent-Child Interaction Scales; parenting plus; Documentation 
and Family partnership training. Specialised education services were also provided to 
organisations in metropolitan and regional Victoria.

“  I found the Keys to Caregiving training helped me to 
understand infant states and assist parents with the best time 
to engage with infants to increase positive interactions between 
parent and child.” 

“ family Partnership increased my ability to really listen, explore 
issues with families and empower families to problem solve 
rather than give advice.” – ClIEnt FEEDBaCK

Student placement at QEC
to support the development of the early childhood sector, QEC provides practical training to 
students.

through 2007–08, QEC provided clinical placements for 4� Early Childhood students 
studying the Graduate Certificate in Social Science pre and postnatal Family Support (from 
Swinburne Institute) and the advanced Diploma of Community Services (Children’s Services) 
(from Chisholm taFE). a further 22 placements were provided to Maternal Child Health 
nursing students from latrobe and rMIt universities..
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our supporters

QEC would like to thank all our supporters for their generous donations. QEC was able to 
purchase a 10-seater bus for transferring families to and from programs who would otherwise 
be unable to attend. QEC thanks the Collier Charitable Fund for their generous donation and 
support for children and families.Charitable Fund.

TAblE 11 DoNATIoNS, 2007–08

DoNor $

Collier Charitable fund $47,000.00

The QEC foundation $15,000.00

Equity Trustees $10,000.00

forest Hill foundation $10,000.00

lord Mayor’s fund $6,894.00

Dame Elizabeth Murdoch $3,000.00

Joe White bequest $3,000.00

Sandhurst Trustees: Estate E g batchelder $1,725.00

Total $96,619.00

TAblE 12 SuMMAry of fINANCIAl rESulTS 2004–08

SuMMAry of fINANCIAl rESulTS 2007–08 $ 2006–07 $ 2005–06 $ 2004–05 $ 2003–04 $

Total Expenses 7,969,127 7,439,544 6,657,476 6,180,455 4,996,095

Total revenue 7,096,775 7,109,087 6,557,349 6,192,394 5,375,768

operating Surplus/(Deficit) (872,352) (330,457) (100,127) 11,939 379,673

retained Surplus/ (Accumulated Deficit) (1,294,786) (412,311) (84,633) (340,045) (351,985)

Total Assets 8,130,219 8,501,527 8,712,807 8,620,389 7,660,466

Total liabilities 1,482,092 1,412,118 1,295,720 1,103,175 967,333

Net Assets 6,648,127 7,089,408 7,417,087 7,517,214 6,693,133

Total Equity 6,648,127 7,089,408 7,417,087 7,517,214 6,693,133

Net Cash Surplus/ (Deficit) operating Activities (725,206) 176,548 381,540 345,041 691,512

attestation on Compliance with australian/new Zealand 
risk Management Standard
I, robyn Gillis certify that the Queen Elizabeth Centre has risk 
management processes in place consistent with the australian/new 
Zealand risk Management Standard and an internal control system is in 
place that enables the executives to understand, manage and satisfactorily 
control risk exposures. the audit Committee verifies this assurance and 
that the risk profile of the Queen Elizabeth Centre has been critically 
reviewed within the last 12 months.

 
 

robyn Gillis
CHIEF ExECutIVE oFFICEr 
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General reports     
 

BuIlDInG aCt 199�
QEC fully complies with the building and maintenance provisions of the Building Act 1993.

ConSultanCIES
Delta Management Consulting, adesse pty ltd, Centre for Excellence in Child and Family 
Welfare were engaged for consultancies during the financial year 2007–08.

EnVIronMEntal pErForManCE
In compliance with governmental environmental policy, QEC has installed power factor 
improvement system to reduce energy consumption. QEC undertook a new recycling program 
within the noble park site, including education and encouragement of staff, contractors and 
clients to utilise situated bins and disposal processes within the program.

FrEEDoM oF InForMatIon
For the year ended �0 June 2008, three requests were received under the Freedom of 
Information Act 1982.

lEGISlatIVE CHanGES
as a public hospital, QEC does not administer any acts directly. the Health Services Act 1988 
is the vehicle by which the hospital is incorporated and prescribes the manner in which it is 
regulated. 

MInIStErIal DIrECtIonS
the information listed in the Directions of the Minister for Finance, Financial reporting 
Directions (FrD 22) is available on request.

natIonal CoMpEtItIon polICY
QEC complies with national Competition policy guidelines when tendering. 

the Centre has outsourced all non-core services.

oCCupatIonal HEaltH & SaFEtY
QEC has established an occupational Health and Safety Management System. the oHS 
Management System monitors safety incidents and accidents.

rEVEnuE InDICatorS
During the financial year 2007–08, QEC had nil collection days in private, taC, VWa, other 
Compensable, psychiatric or nursing home categories.

WHIStlEBloWErS protECtIon aCt
there were no disclosures under the Whistleblowers Protection Act 2001.
 

aCronYMS
DHS Victorian Government Department of Human Services 
faHCSIA  australian Government Department of Families, Housing, Community 

Services and Indigenous affairs 
NCAST     nursing Child assessment Satellite training, university of Washington, uSa 
PASDS parenting assessment and Skills Development Services 
PCI Scales parent Child Intervention Scales 
QEC  Queen Elizabeth Centre 
VbHCA Victorian Baby Health Centres association 
CAIS Client assessment and Intake System
EMCH  Enhanced Maternal Child Health
IfS Integrated Family Services
CAlD Culturally and linguistically Diverse
Child fIrST Child and Family Information referral and Support teams
CCCH the Centre for Community Child Health
NHS national Health Scheme 
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responsible Bodies Declaration 
the Queen Elizabeth Centre annual report 2007-08
in accordance with the Financial management act 1994, i am pleased to present the 
report of operations for the Queen Elizabeth Centre, for the year ending 30 June 2008.

Susan Harper OAM
Vice President
QEC
22 September 2008
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operating Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2008
 NOTES 2008 2007
   $   $ 

revenue from operating activities 2  6,909,749   6,568,040 

revenue from non-operating activities 2  97,190   386,925 

Employee Benefits 3  (5,826,348)  (5,260,113)

Supplies & Consumables 3  (176,326)  (164,552)

other Expenses from Continuing operations 3  (1,513,043)  (1,672,883)

Net Result from Continuing Activities before Capital and Specific Items   (508,778)  (142,583)

Capital purpose income 2  89,836   154,122 

Depreciation and amortisation 4  (453,410)  (341,996)

net Gains/(losses) on Disposal of non-Current assets 3c  (10,122)  2,778 

NET RESULT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR   (882,474)  (327,679)

thiS StatEmEnt ShoulD BE rEaD in ConJunCtion With thE aCCompanYinG notES
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thiS StatEmEnt ShoulD BE rEaD in ConJunCtion With thE aCCompanYinG notES

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2008
  NOTES 2008 2007
   $   $ 

aSSEtS
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5, 16  197,114   877,875 

receivables 6, 16  265,861   98,780 

other Financial assets 7, 16  1,890,657   -   

prepayments   -     3,154 

Total Current Assets   2,353,632   979,809 

Non-Current Assets

receivables 6  290,894   81,292 

other Financial assets 7, 16  -     2,276,741 

property, plant and Equipment 8  5,307,118   5,062,942 

intangible assets 9  178,575   100,742 

Total Non- Current Assets   5,776,587   7,521,718 

TOTAL ASSETS   8,130,219   8,501,527 

liaBilitiES
Current Liabilities

interest Bearing liabilities 10, 16  8,039   5,330 

payables 11, 16  179,443   295,310 

provisions 12a  1,079,382   945,112 

Total Current Liabilities   1,266,864   1,245,752 

Non-Current Liabilities

provisions 12a  215,228   166,366 

Total Non- Current Liabilities   215,228   166,366 

TOTAL LIABILITIES   1,482,092   1,412,118 

NET ASSETS   6,648,127   7,089,408 

EQuitY
asset revaluation reserve 14a  2,058,374   1,729,754 

General purpose reserve 14a  990,000   990,000 

Contributed Capital 14b  4,894,538   4,781,965 

accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits) 14c  (1,294,786)  (412,311)

TOTAL EQUITY   6,648,127   7,089,408 
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thiS StatEmEnt ShoulD BE rEaD in ConJunCtion With thE aCCompanYinG notES

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 30 June 2008
  NOTES 2008 2007
   $   $ 

Total Equity at Beginning of Financial Year   7,089,408   7,417,087 

Gain on asset revaluation 14a  328,620   - 

Net Income Recognised Directly In Equity   328,620   - 

net result for the Year 14c  (882,474)  (327,679)

Total Recognised Income and Expense for the Year   (553,854)  (327,679)

transactions with the State in its capacity as owner 14b  112,573   - 

TOTAL EQUITY AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR   6,648,127   7,089,408 

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 30 June 2008
 NOTES 2008 2007
   $   $ 

CaSh FloWS From opEratinG aCtiVitiES
Receipts

 Government Grants   6,163,809   6,387,086 

 Donations and Bequests   133,105   214,188 

 interest received   65,246   409,357 

 GSt received from ato   21,226   - 

 other receipts   520,354   703,921 

Payments

 Employee Benefits paid   (5,747,304)  (5,219,187)

 payments for Supplies and Consumables    (1,818,160)  (1,623,113)

 GSt paid to ato   (63,482)  (693,989)

 other payments   -   (1,715)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 15  (725,206)  176,548 

CaSh FloWS From inVEStinG aCtiVitiES
purchase of properties, plant and Equipment and intangible assets   (520,412)  (1,019,246)

proceeds from Sale of properties, plant and Equipment   63,492   110,113 

net proceeds from investments in other financial assets  501,365   (320,276)

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   44,445   (1,229,409)

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HELD   (680,761)  (1,052,861)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF FINANCIAL YEAR  877,875   1,930,736 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR 5  197,114   877,875 

2008 QEC annual rEport
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note 1: Statement of Significant accounting policies
(a) StatEmEnt oF ComplianCE 
the financial report is a general purpose financial report which has 
been prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with the Financial 
management act 1994, applicable australian accounting Standards 
(aaS), which includes the australian accounting standards issued by 
the australian accounting Standards Board (aaSB), interpretations 
and other mandatory professional requirements.

(B) BaSiS oF prEparation
the financial report is prepared in accordance with the historical 
cost convention, except for the revaluation of certain non-current 
assets and financial instruments, as noted. Cost is based on the fair 
values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

in the application of aaSs management is required to make 
judgments, estimates and assumptions about carrying values of 
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
the estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstance, the results of which form the 
basis of making the judgments. actual results may differ from these 
estimates. 

the estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only 
that period or in the period of the revision, and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which 
ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies the concepts 
of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the 
underlying transactions or other events is reported.

the accounting policies set out below have been applied in 
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 
2008 and the comparative information presented in these financial 
statements for the year ended 30 June 2007.

(C) rEportinG EntitY
the financial statements include all the controlled activities of the 
Queen Elizabeth Centre. the entity is a not-for profit entity and 
therefore applies the additional australian paragraphs applicable to 
“not-for-profit” entities under the aaS’s.

(D) rounDinG oFF 
all amounts shown in the Financial Statements are expressed to the 
nearest dollar.

(E) CaSh anD CaSh EQuiValEntS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, 
deposits at call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity 
date of 3 months or less, which are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 
value.

For the cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and 
cash equivalents includes bank overdrafts, which are included as 
current borrowings in the balance sheet.

(F) rECEiVaBlES
trade receivables, loans and other receivables are recorded at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less impairment.  

the effective interest method is a method of calculating the 
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income 
over the relevant period.  the effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter 
period.

trade debtors are due for settlement within 30 days from 
the date of recognition.  Collectability of debts is reviewed on an 
ongoing basis, and debts which are known to be uncollectible are 
written off.  a provision for doubtful debts is raised where doubt as 
to collection exists.  

(G) othEr FinanCial aSSEtS
other financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on 
trade date where purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a 
contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the 
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially 
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. 

other financial assets are classified between current and non 
current assets based on the Queen Elizabeth Centre Board of 
management’s intention at balance date with respect to the timing of 
disposal of each asset. management determines the classification of 
its investments at initial recognition.

the Queen Elizabeth Centre assess at each balance sheet date 
whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

available-for-sale Financial assets
other financial assets held by the entity are classified as being 
available-for-sale and are stated at fair value.  Gains and losses arising 
from changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity until the 
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is 
included in profit or loss for the period.  Fair value is determined in 
the manner described in note 16.

(h) intanGiBlE aSSEtS
intangible assets represent identifiable non-monetary assets without 
physical substance such as patents, trademarks, computer software 
and development costs.

intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. Subsequently, 
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.  
Costs incurred subsequent to initial acquisition are capitalised when 
it is expected that additional future economic benefits will flow to 
the entity.

amortisation is allocated to intangible assets with finite useful 
lives on a straight-line basis over the asset’s useful life. amortisation 
begins when the asset is available for use, that is, when it is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating 
in the manner intended by management. the amortisation period 
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite 

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each annual reporting 
period. in addition, an assessment is made at each reporting date 
to determine whether there are indicators that the intangible asset 
concerned is impaired. if so, the assets concerned are tested as to 
whether their carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount. 

(i) propErtY, plant anD EQuipmEnt
Land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently 
measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation. the fair 
value of land and buildings are determined through revaluations in 
accordance with FrD 103C. this revaluation process occurs every 
five years, as dictated by timelines in FrD 103C. 

revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset 
revaluation reserve, except that, to the extent that an increment 
reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that class of asset 
previously recognised at an expense in net result, the increment is 
recognised as income in the net result.
Plant, equipment and vehicles are measured at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Cultural Assets that the State intends to preserve because of their 
unique historical, cultural or environmental attributes are measured 
at their fair value and are not depreciated. 

(J) DEprECiation anD amortiSation
assets with a cost in excess of $1,000 (2006-7 and 2007-8) are 
capitalised and depreciation has been provided on depreciable assets 
so as to allocate their cost - or valuation - over their estimated 
useful lives using the straight-line method.  Estimates of the remaining 
useful lives for all assets are reviewed at least annually. 

material intangible assets are capitalised and amortisation has 
been provided on those intangible assets with a finite useful life.

the following table indicates the expected useful lives of non-current 
assets on which the depreciation and amortisation charges are based:

2008 2007

Buildings 20 to 40 years 20 to 40 years

plant & Equipment 8 to 10 years 8 to 10 years

Furniture & Fittings 8 to 10 years 8 to 10 years

motor Vehicles 4 to 5 years 4 to 5 years

Computers & Communication 2 to 5 years 2 to 5 years

Computer software developed 2 to 5 years 2 to 5 years

this depreciation charge is not funded by the Department of 
human Services.

(k) paYaBlES
these amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided 
prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid, and arise when 
the Queen Elizabeth Centre becomes obliged to make future 
payments in respect of the purchase of these goods and services.  

the normal credit terms are usually nett 30 days.

(l) FunCtional anD prESEntation CurrEnCY 
the presentation currency of the Queen Elizabeth Centre is the 
australian dollar, which has also been identified as the functional 
currency of the entity.

(m) tax 
Goods and Services tax
income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of 
associated Goods and Services tax (GSt), unless the GSt incurred 
is not recoverable from the taxation authority. in this case it is 
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part 
of the expense.

receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount 
of GSt receivable or payable. the net amount of GSt recoverable 
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other 
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. the GSt components 
of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are 
recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented 
as operating cash flow.

income tax
the Queen Elizabeth Centre is a public hospital and deductible gift 
recipient and is therefore exempt from paying income tax.

(n) EmploYEE BEnEFitS
Wages and Salaries, annual leave, Sick leave and 
accrued Days off
liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits, 
annual leave, accumulating sick leave and accrued days off expected 
to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised 
in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee’s 
services up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and 
measured at nominal values.

When liabilities that are not expected to be settled within 12 
months are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as 
current liabilities, it is because the Queen Elizabeth Centre will 
not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement should an 
employee take leave within 12 months. those liabilities are measured 
at present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the 
liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply 
at the time of settlement.

long Service leave (lSl)
Current Liability – unconditional LSL (representing 10 or more years 
of continuous service) is disclosed as a current liability.

the components of current lSl liability are measured at:
present value – component that the Queen Elizabeth Centre does 
not expect to settle within 12 months; and
nominal value – component that the Queen Elizabeth Centre 
expects to settle within 12 months.

Non-Current Liability – conditional LSL (representing less than 10 years 
of continuous service) is disclosed as a non-current liability.  there 
is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the entitlement 
until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.  
Conditional lSl is required to be measured at present value.

Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary 
levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. 
Expected future payments are discounted using interest rates of 
Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities in australia. 

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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Superannuation
Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are 
expensed when incurred.
Defined benefit plans
the amount charged to the operating Statement in respect of 
defined benefit plan superannuation represents the contributions 
made by the entity to the superannuation plan in respect to the 
current services of current entity staff. Superannuation contributions 
are made to the plans based on the relevant rules of each plan.

Employees of the Queen Elizabeth Centre are entitled to 
receive superannuation benefits and the Queen Elizabeth Centre 
contributes to both the defined benefit and defined contribution 
plans.  the defined benefit plan(s) provide benefits based on years of 
service and final average salary. 

the name and details of the major employee superannuation 
funds and contributions made by the Queen Elizabeth Centre are 
as follows:

Fund

Contributions Paid or Payable for the year

2008
$

2007
$

Defined Benefit plans

health Super 19,223 18,854

Defined Contribution plans

health Super 376,744 337,087

hESta 47,626 55,688

others 19,160 10,735

Total 462,753 422,364

the Queen Elizabeth Centre does not recognise any defined 
benefit liability in respect of the superannuation plan because the 
Queen Elizabeth Centre has no legal or constructive obligation to 
pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation is to 
pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. the Department 
of treasury and Finance has assumed responsibility for the defined 
benefit liability of the health Service, and administers and discloses 
the State’s defined benefit liabilities in its financial report.

on-Costs
Employee benefits on-costs (payroll tax, workers compensation, 
superannuation, annual leave and long Service leave (lSl) accrued 
while on lSl taken in service) are recognised separately from 
provision for employee benefits.

(o) FinanCE CoStS
Finance costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they 
are incurred. Finance costs include interest on bank overdrafts and 
short-term borrowings.

(p) lEaSES  
all leases held by the Queen Elizabeth Centre are classified as 
operating leases.

Entity as lessee
operating lease payments, are recognised as an expense in the 
operating statement on a straight line basis over the lease term 

lease incentives
all incentives for the agreement of a new or renewed operating 
lease shall be recognised as an integral part of the net consideration 
agreed for the use of the leased asset, irrespective of the incentive’s 
nature or form or the timing of payments.

(Q) rEVEnuE rECoGnition
revenue is recognised in accordance with aaSB 118 revenue. 
income is recognised as revenue to the extent they are earned.  
unearned income at reporting date is reported as income in 
advance.

amounts disclosed as revenue are, where applicable, net of 
returns, allowances and duties and taxes.

Government Grants
Grants are recognised as revenue when the Queen Elizabeth Centre 
gains control of the underlying assets in accordance with aaSB 1004.  
Where grants are reciprocal, revenue is recognised as performance occurs 
under the grant.  non-reciprocal grants are recognised as revenue when 
the grant is received or receivable.  Conditional grants may be reciprocal 
or non-reciprocal depending on the terms of the grant.

indirect Contributions
insurance is recognised as revenue following advice from the 
Department of human Services.

long Service leave (lSl) - revenue is recognised upon 
finalisation of movements in lSl liability in line with the arrangements 
set out in the acute health Division hospital Circular 13/2008.

Donations
Donations and bequests are recognised as revenue when received in 
accordance with aaSB 1004. if donations are for a special purpose, 
they may be appropriated to a reserve, such as specific restricted 
purpose reserve 

interest revenue 
interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that 
takes in account the effective yield of the financial asset.

(r) FunD aCCountinG
the Queen Elizabeth Centre operates on a fund accounting basis 
and maintains three funds: operating, Specific purpose and Capital 
Funds. the Queen Elizabeth Centre’s Capital and Specific purpose 
Funds include unspent capital donations and receipts from fund-
raising activities conducted solely in respect of these funds.

(S) SErViCES SupportED BY hEalth SErViCES 
aGrEEmEnt anD SErViCES SupportED BY 
hoSpital anD CommunitY initiatiVES
activities classified as Services Supported By health Services 
agreement (hSa) are substantially funded by the Department 
of human Services while Services Supported By hospital and 
Community initiatives (non hSa) are funded by the Queen 
Elizabeth Centre’s own activities or local initiatives and/or the 
Commonwealth.

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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(t) ComparatiVE inFormation
Where necessary the previous year’s figures have been reclassified 
to facilitate comparisons.

(u) aSSEt rEValuation rESErVE
the asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and 
decrements on the revaluation of non-current assets.

(V) ContriButED Capital
Consistent with interpretation 1038 Contributions by owners made 
to Wholly-owned public Sector Entities and FrD 2a Contributions 
by owners, appropriations for additions to the net asset base have 
been designated as contributed capital.

Standard / Interpretation Summary
Applicable for reporting 
periods beginning on or 

ending on

Impact on Entities Annual 
Statements

aaSB 8 operating Segments. Supersedes aaSB 114 Segment reporting. Beginning 1 January 2009 not applicable

aaSB 2007-3 amendments to australian 
accounting Standards arising from aaSB 
8 [aaSB 5, aaSB 6, aaSB 102, aaSB 
107, aaSB 119, aaSB 127, aaSB 134, 
aaSB 136, aaSB 1023 and aaSB 1038]

an accompanying amending standard, also 
introduced consequential amendments into other 
Standards.

Beginning 1 January 2009 impact expected to be not 
significant.

aaSB 2007-6 amendments to australian 
accounting Standards arising from aaSB 
123 [aaSB 1, aaSB 101, aaSB 107, 
aaSB 111, aaSB 116 & aaSB 138 and 
interpretations 1 & 12]

option to expense borrowing cost related to a 
qualifying asset had been removed.  Entities are 
now required to capitalise borrowing costs relevant 
to qualifying assets.

Beginning 1 January 2009 all australian government 
jurisdictions are currently 
still actively pursuing an 
exemption for government 
from capitalising borrowing 
costs.

aaSB 2007-8 amendments to australian 
accounting Standards arising from aaSB 
101

Editorial amendments to australian accounting 
Standards to align with iFrS terminology

Beginning 1 January 2009 impact expected to be not 
significant.

aaSB 1004 (revised) Contributions relocation of requirements on contributions from 
aaSs 27, 29 and 31, into aaSB 1004.

Beginning 1 July 2008 impact expected to be not 
significant.

aaSB 1050 administered items relocation of the requirements for the disclosure 
of administered items from aaS 29 into a new 
topic-based Standard.

Beginning 1 July 2008 impact expected to be not 
significant.

aaSB 1052 Disaggregated Disclosures relocation of the requirements relating to 
reporting of disaggregated information from aaS 
27 and aaS 29, into a new topic-based Standard.

Beginning 1 July 2008 impact expected to be not 
significant.

interpretation 1038 (revised) 
Contributions by owners made to 
Wholly-owned public Sector Entities

relocation of the requirements on contributions 
from aaSs 27, 29 and 31, into aaSB 1004.

Beginning 1 July 2007 impact expected to be not 
significant.

aaSB 2007-9  amendments to 
australian accounting Standards arising 
from the review of aaSs 27, 29 and 
31 [aaSB 3, aaSB 5, aaSB 8, aaSB 
101, aaSB 114, aaSB 116, aaSB 127 & 
aaSB 137]

relocation of certain relevant requirements from 
aaSs 27, 29 and 31, into existing topic-based 
Standards. in particular, this Standard addresses: 
(a) the notion of reporting entity as it applies to 
local governments, governments and government 
departments; 
(b) restructures of local governments; 
(c) infrastructure, cultural, community and heritage 
assets; 
(d) control in the public sector; and 
(e) obligations arising from local government and 
government existing public policies, budget policies, 
election promises or statements of intent. 
this Standard also makes consequential 
amendments, arising from the short-term review of 
the requirements in aaSs 27, 29 and 31, to aaSB 
5, aaSB 8, aaSB 101 and aaSB 114.

Beginning 1 July 2008 impact expected to be not 
significant.

(W) nEW aCCountinG StanDarDS anD 
intErprEtationS
Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been 
published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2008 reporting period.  
as at 30 June 2008, the following standards and interpretations 
had been issued but were not mandatory for financial years ending 
30 June 2008.  the Queen Elizabeth Centre has not and does not 
intend to adopt these standards early.

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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note 2: revenue
  HSA   HSA   NON HSA   NON HSA   TOTAL   TOTAL
 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
 $  $ $  $  $ $ 

Revenue from Operating Activities    

Government Grants

 Department of human Services  5,479,124   5,349,176   65,850   22,000   5,544,974   5,371,176 

 Commonwealth Government  -   -   119,529   117,070   119,529   117,070 

indirect Contributions by Department of human Services

 insurance  40,036   48,759   -   -   40,036   48,759 

 long Service leave   290,204   (9,897)  -   -   290,204   (9,897)

Donations and Bequests  -   50,000   10,020   33,000   10,020   83,000 

other revenue from operating activities  138,881   223,211   766,105   734,721   904,986   957,932 

Sub-Total Revenue from Operating Activities  5,948,245   5,661,249   961,504   906,791   6,909,749   6,568,040 

Revenue from Non-Operating Activities 

Earnings on investments (refer note 2b)  74,841   142,087   22,349   244,838   97,190   386,925 

Sub-Total Revenue from Non-Operating Activities  74,841   142,087   22,349   244,838   97,190   386,925 

Revenue from Capital Purpose Income

Donations and Bequests  -   -   86,619   131,188   86,619   131,188 

Capital Earnings on investments (refer note 2b)  -   -   2,717   22,434   2,717   22,434 

other Capital purpose income  -   -   500   500   500   500 

Sub-Total Revenue from Capital Purpose Income  -   -   89,836   154,122   89,836   154,122 

Total Revenue (refer Note 2a)  6,023,086   5,803,336   1,073,689   1,305,751   7,096,775   7,109,087 

Indirect Contributions by Department of Human Services

Department of human Services makes insurance payments on behalf of the Queen Elizabeth Centre (QEC).  these amounts have been 
brought to account in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and expenses.

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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note 2a analysis of revenue by Source  
(Based on the consolidated view of note 2)

 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Revenue from Sources Supported by Health Services Agreement

Government Grants:  

 Department of human Services  5,479,124   5,349,176 

indirect Contributions by Department of human Services:

 insurance  40,036   48,759 

 long Service leave   290,204   (9,897)

Earnings on investments  74,841   142,087 

other revenue  138,881   273,211 

Sub-Total Revenue from Services Supported by Health Services Agreement  6,023,086   5,803,336 

Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives

research and Development  60,910   194,400 

Education Services  147,462   85,499 

Conference  -   210,865 

parenting programs  741,053   415,118 

Capital purpose income (refer note 2)  89,836   154,122 

Earnings on investments - General  22,349   244,838 

other revenue  12,079   909 

Sub-Total Revenue from Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives  1,073,689   1,305,751 

Total Revenue  7,096,775   7,109,087 

note 2b Earnings on investment in Financial instruments

 2008 2007
 $ $

net Gain/(loss) on available-for-sale Financial assets  (12,268)  317,221 

interest revenue from Financial assets that are not at fair value through profit and loss  112,175   92,138 

Total Earnings on Investment in Financial Instruments  99,907   409,359 
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note 3: Expenditure
note 3a analysis of Expenses by Source

 2008 2007
  $   $

Services Supported by  Health Services Agreement

Employee Benefits:

 Salaries & Wages 4,667,526   4,404,424 

 Work Cover 73,105   44,362 

 long Service leave (refer note 12a) 326,673   63,273 

 Superannuation   441,240   400,663 

Supplies & Consumables:  

 medical & pharmacy Supplies & Services  8,897   6,985 

 Food & kitchen Supplies  147,039   104,169 

 Cleaning & toilet materials  12,022   13,099 

 Bedding & linen  600   3,771 

other Expenses:  

 Domestic Service Contracts  343,352   305,380 

 administrative Expenses  194,324   272,652 

 insurance  40,036   48,869 

 repairs & maintenance  90,427   119,596 

 Consultants & Contracted Services  115,873   122,152 

 Computer Services  66,112   53,797 

 Staff Development  109,998   60,429 

 Security Services  15,259   19,512 

 minor Furniture & Equipment  13,911   37,821 

 motor Vehicle and travel   115,663   105,390 

 light, power & Fuel  51,933   48,127 

 Waste removal  14,245   10,970 

 inter-agency Costs  -   6,317 

 Fringe Benefits tax  71,076   107,929 

 other  80,303   64,309 

Sub-Total Expenses from Services Supported by Health Services Agreement  6,999,614   6,423,996 

Services Supported by Hospital and Community Initiatives  

Employee benefits:

 Salaries & Wages  265,767   313,925 

 Work Cover  5,134   2,300 

 long Service leave (refer note 12a)  25,390   9,466 

 Superannuation  21,513   21,700 

Supplies & Consumables:

 Food Supplies  7,768   36,528 

other Expenses:

 administrative Expenses  40,346   65,094 

 Consultants & Contracted Services  109,327   153,078 

 repairs & maintenance  292   281 

 minor Furniture & Equipment  -   407 

 motor Vehicle & travel  17,427   16,106 

 Staff Development  95   16,200 

 other  4,407   18,400 

Sub-Total Expenses from Services Supported by Hospital & Community Initiatives  497,466   653,485 

net (Gains)/losses on Disposal of non-Current assets (refer note 3c)  10,122   (2,778)

Depreciation (refer note 4a)  384,496   336,193 

amortisation (refer note 4b)  68,914   5,803 

audit Fees - auditor General  6,400   9,317 

audit Fees - internal audit  12,237   10,750 

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations  7,979,249   7,436,766

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008



16
2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008

note 3b  analysis of Expenses by internal Specific purpose Funds for Services 
Supported by hospital and Community initiatives

 2008 2007
  $   $ 

research & Development  91,799   69,300 

Education Services  156,903   208,500 

Conference  32,308   214,200 

parenting programs  486,695   293,900 

  767,705   785,900 

note 3c net Gain/(loss) on Disposal of non-Current assets

 2008 2007
  $   $ 

proceeds from Disposal of non-Current assets:

 motor Vehicles  63,165   110,113 

 other Equipment  327   118 

Total Proceeds from Disposal of Non-Current Assets  63,492   110,231 

less Written Down Value of assets Sold:

 motor Vehicles  73,614   107,453 

 other Equipment  -   - 

Total Written Down Value of Non-Current Assets Sold  73,614   107,453 

Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Non-Current Assets  (10,122)  2,778

note 4: Depreciation and amortisation 
note 4a Depreciation

 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Buildings  152,439   131,951 

plant & Equipment:

 motor Vehicles  117,356   103,562 

 Computers & Communication  54,927   48,530 

 other Equipment  49,254   43,512 

Furniture & Fittings  10,520   8,638 

Total Depreciation (refer Note 8)  384,496   336,193 

note 4b amortisation

Computer Software  68,914   5,803 

Total Amortisation (refer Note 9)  68,914   5,803 

Total Depreciation and Amortisation  453,410   341,996 

note 4c allocation of Depreciation and amortisation

 Services Supported by health Services agreement  406,905   333,609 

 Services Supported by hospital and Community initiatives  46,505   8,387 

Total Depreciation and Amortisation  453,410   341,996
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note 5: Cash and Cash Equivalents

a reconciliation of the amounts classified as cash and cash equivalents for the balance sheet purposes and cash flow statement purposes is as follows:

 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Cash on hand  878   679 

Cash at Bank  196,236   120,250 

term Deposits with maturity date < 90 days  -   756,946 

Total   197,114   877,875 

Represented by:

Cash for health Service operations (as per Cash Flow Statement)  197,114   877,875 

Total   197,114   877,875 

note 6: receivables
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Current

trade Debtors  176,963   76,959 

accrued Debtor income  3,000   13,910 

accrued investment income  34,558   7,911 

GSt receivable  51,340   - 

Total Current Receivables  265,861   98,780 

Non Current

accrued revenue -  DhS long Service leave  290,894   81,292 

Total Non-Current Receivables  290,894   81,292 

Total Receivables  556,755   180,072 

   

6a allowance for Doubtful Debts

at 30 June 2008 there is not doubtful debt provision, due to the low level of risk for receivables.

at 30 June 2007 there was no doubtful debt provision, due to the low level of risk for receivables.

6b ageing analysis of receivables

please refer to note 16 (b) for the ageing analysis of receivables.

6c nature and Extent of risk arising from receivables

please refer to note 16 (b) for the nature and extent of credit risk arising from receivables

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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note 7: other Financial assets

available for Sale Financial assets

 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Current

Term Deposit (90 -120 days)

 operating Fund  1,514,261   - 

 Specific purposes Fund  343,994   - 

 Capital Fund  32,402   - 

Total Current   1,890,657   - 

Non Current

Managed Funds

 operating Fund  -   890,913 

 Specific purposes Fund  -   1,252,672 

 Capital Fund  -   133,156 

Total Non Current  -   2,276,741 

Total Other Financial Assets  1,890,657   2,276,741

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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note 8: property, plant and Equipment
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Land

Crown land at Valuation (i)  1,536,620   1,209,000 

Total Land  1,536,620   1,209,000 

Buildings 

Buildings at valuation (ii)  2,667,000   2,667,000 

Building improvements at Cost 843,374   759,558 

 less accumulated depreciation 410,067   257,628 

Total Buildings  3,100,307   3,168,930 

Plant and Equipment at Cost

plant and Equipment 403,264   405,159 

 less accumulated depreciation  294,400   246,891 

Total Plant and Equipment  108,865   158,268 

Computers and Communication at Cost

Computers and Communication  353,615   320,797 

 less accumulated depreciation  280,018   254,695 

Total Computers and Communications  73,597   66,102 

Furniture and Fittings at Cost

Furniture and Fittings  163,849   109,621 

 less accumulated depreciation  73,212   62,695 

Total Furniture and Fittings  90,637   46,925 

Motor Vehicles at Cost

motor Vehicles  561,168   513,202 

 less accumulated depreciation  169,075   103,485 

Total Motor Vehicles  392,093   409,717 

Cultural Assets

Cultural assets at Valuation (iii)  5,000   4,000 

Total Cultural Assets  5,000   4,000 

TOTAL 5,307,118   5,062,942 

Land and Buildings at Valuation:

revaluation increments or decrements arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.

(i) the noble park buildings and improvements was revalued at its fair value by independent valuer John Welch, aapi, Certified practising Valuer dated 23 

June 2005. FrD 103C dictates that the next  revaluation occur on 30 June 2009.

(ii) the noble park land was revalued using market land indices and a managerial revaluation endorsed by the Valuer-General Victoria 30 June 2008. FrD 

103C dictates that the next  revaluation occur on 30 June 2009.

Cultural Assets at Valuation:

(iii) Cultural assets were revalued by leonard Joel - australia, 30 June 2008. FrD 103C dictates that the next  revaluation occur on 30 June 

2011. revaluation increments or decrements arise from differences between an asset’s carrying value and fair value.

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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reconciliations of the Carrying amounts of each Class of assets at the Beginning 
and End of the previous and Current Financial Year

  CROWN   BUILDINGS   PLANT & FURNITURE   CULTURAL    TOTAL 
  LAND   EQUIPMENT   & FITTINGS   ASSETS  
  $   $   $   $   $   $ 

Balance at 1 July 2006  1,209,000   2,757,323   564,818   55,569   4,000   4,590,710 

additions  -   543,558   372,321   -   -   915,879 

Disposals  -   -   (107,454)  -   -   (107,454)

Depreciation (refer note 4a)  -   (131,951)  (195,604)  (8,638)  -   (336,193)

Balance at 1 July 2007  1,209,000   3,168,930   634,082   46,931   4,000   5,062,942 

additions  -   83,816   235,624   54,226   -   373,666 

Disposals  -   -   (73,614)  -   -   (73,614)

revaluation increments  327,620   -   -   -   1,000   328,620 

Depreciation (refer note 4a)  -   (152,439)  (221,538)  (10,520)  -   (384,496)

Balance at 30 June 2008  1,536,620   3,100,307   574,554   90,637   5,000   5,307,118 

note 9: intangible assets
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Intangible Assets at Cost

intangible assets      253,292   106,545

 less accumulated amortisation      74,717   5,803

Total Intangible Assets      178,575   100,742 

reconciliation of the Carrying amounts of intangible assets at the Beginning and 
End of the previous and Current Financial Year

  SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT   TOTAL 
  $   $ 

Balance at 1 July 2006      -   - 

additions      106,545   106,545 

Disposals      -   - 

amortisation (refer note 4b)      (5,803)  (5,803)

Balance at 30 June 2007      100,742   100,742 

additions      146,746   146,746 

Disposals      -   - 

amortisation (refer note 4b)      (68,914)  (68,914)

Balance at 30 June 2008      178,575   178,575
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note 10: interest Bearing liabilities
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Credit Card national australia Bank  8,039   5,330 

Total Interest Bearing Liabilities  8,039   5,330 

note 11: payables
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Current

trade Creditors  135,324   212,413 

accrued Expenses  44,119   19,415 

GSt payable  -   63,482 

Total Current  179,443   295,310 

note 12:  provisions
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Current

Employee Benefits 

 unpaid wages  154,706   303,341 

 annual leave  459,373   437,937 

 long Service leave  465,303   203,834 

Total Current  1,079,382   945,112 

Non-Current

Employee Benefits  215,228   166,366 

Total Non-Current  215,228   166,366 

note 12a Employee Entitlements

 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Current

Employee Benefits

 unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the period  882,881   741,278 

 unconditional that do not fall due within 12 months after the end of the period  196,501   203,834 

Total Current  1,079,382   945,112 

Non-Current

Employee Benefits 

 Conditional long Service leave entitlements measured at present value  215,228   166,366 

Total Non-Current  215,228   166,366 

 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Movement in Long Service Leave:

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  370,200   330,303 

provision made during the year  352,063   72,739 

Settlement made during the year  (41,732)  (32,842)

Balance at end of the reporting period  680,531   370,200 
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note 13: Commitments
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Painting Contract

not later than one year  14,000   11,000 

later than one year and not later than 5 years   -   14,000 

 Total  14,000   25,000 

note 14: Equity & reserves
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

(a) Reserves

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  1,729,754   1,729,754 

revaluation increment/(Decrement)  328,620   - 

Balance at the end of the Reporting Period  2,058,374   1,729,754 

Represented by:

 land  1,536,620   1,209,000 

 Buildings  516,754   516,754 

 Cultural assets  5,000   4,000 

  2,058,374   1,729,754

General Purpose Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  990,000   990,000 

Balance at the end of the Reporting Period  990,000   990,000 

Total Reserves  3,048,374   2,719,754 

(b) Contributed Capital

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  4,781,965   4,781,965 

Capital contribution received from Victorian Government  112,573   - 

Balance at the end of the Reporting Period  4,894,538   4,781,965 

(c) Accumulated Surpluses/(Deficits)

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  (412,311)  (84,633)
net result for the year  (882,474)  (327,679)

Balance at the end of the Reporting Period  (1,294,786)  (412,311)

(d) Total Equity at the end of Financial Year  6,648,127   7,089,408

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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note 15: reconciliation of net result for the Year to net Cash 
inflow/(outflow) from operating activities
 2008 2007
  $   $ 

Net Result for the Year  (882,474)  (327,679)

profit/(loss) from Sale of  property, plant and Equipment  10,122   (2,778)

Depreciation and amortisation  453,410   341,996 

Changes in assets and liabilities

increase/(Decrease) in receivables  (376,683)  14,358 

increase/(Decrease) in prepayments  3,154   34,253 

increase/(Decrease) in payables  (115,867)  17,505 

increase/(Decrease) in Employee Benefits  183,132   98,893 

Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities   (725,206)  176,548

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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note 16: Financial instruments 

(a) Categorisation of Financial Instruments

Details of each category of financial instrument held by QEC are disclosed in the table below

   Carrying Amount   Carrying Amount 
  2008 2007
 Category  $   $ 

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer note 5)  Cash   197,114  877,875  

trade Debtors (refer note 6)  loans and receivables   176,963   76,959  

other receivables (refer note 6)  loans and receivables   37,558   21,821  

other Financial assets (refer note 7)  available for sale financial assets (at amortised cost)   1,890,657  2,276,741  

Financial Liabilities

interest Bearing liabilities (refer note 10)  Credit Cards   8,039   5,330  

Current payables (refer note 11)  Financial liabilities (at amortised cost)   179,443   231,828  

(b)  Credit Risk

the QEC’s exposure to credit risk and weighted average effective interest rate is set out in the following table

interest rate Exposure and analysis of Financial assets as at 30/6/08

        Interest Rate Exposure   
  Weighted       
 Average     Not Past Past Due and
 Effective  Carrying Fixed Variable Non Interest Due and Not Not Impaired
 Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate Interest Rate Bearing Impaired  (> 30 days)
 %  $   $   $   $   $  $

2008

Financial Assets

Cash 3.8  197,114   -   196,236   878   197,114   - 

Cash Equivalents (term deposits)   -   -   -   -   -   - 

trade Debtors 0.0  176,963   -   -   176,963   169,139   7,824 

other receivables 0.0  37,558   -   -   37,558   37,558   - 

other Financial assets (term deposits) 7.9  1,890,657   1,890,657   -   -   1,890,657   - 

other Financial assets (Equity instruments)   -   -   -   -   -   - 

Total Financial Assets   2,302,292   1,890,657   196,236   215,399   2,294,468   7,824 

2007

Financial Assets

Cash 2.5  120,929   -   120,250   679   120,929   - 

Cash Equivalents (term deposits) 6.2  756,946   756,946   -   -   756,946   - 

trade Debtors 0.0  76,959   -   -   76,959   69,551   7,408 

other receivables 0.0  21,821   -   -   21,821   21,821   - 

other Financial assets (term deposits)   -   -   -   -   -   - 

other Financial assets (Equity instruments) 12.4  2,276,741   -   2,276,741   -   2,276,741   - 

Total Financial Assets   3,253,396   756,946   120,250   99,459   3,245,988   7,408 

the QEC’s exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of counterparts to their contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to the 

organisation.

the QEC manage the credit risk by assessing potential clients and utilising revenue contracts, diversification of investments and reviewing aging analysis in 

a timely manner.

the objective of managing credit risk is to minimise the possibility of defaulting on repayments.

2008 QEC annual rEport
notES to thE FinanCial StatEmEntS 30 JunE 2008
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(c) Liquidity Risk
the following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for QEC’s financial liabilities.

QEC manage liquidity risk by maintaining some investments at call and by budgeting and projecting cash flows to meet contractual commitments.

QEC has a $200,000 overdraft facility with national australia Bank. the facility is not being used, so is not reported in this table. 

interest rate Exposure and analysis of Financial liabilities as at 30/6/08

     Interest Rate Exposure   
  Weighted       
 Average     Contractual 
 Effective  Carrying Fixed Variable Non Interest Cash Not 
 Interest Rate Amount Interest Rate Interest Rate Bearing Flows  Past Due
 %  $   $   $   $   $  $

2008

Payables

interest bearing liabilities 18.3  8,039   -   8,039   -   8,039  8,039 

trade creditors and accruals 0.0  179,443   -   -   179,443   179,443  179,443 

Total Financial Liabilities   187,482   -   8,039   179,443   187,482  187,482 

2007

Payables

interest bearing liabilities 17.8  5,330   -   5,330   -   5,330  5,330 

trade creditors and accruals 0.0  231,828   -   -   231,828   231,828  231,828 

Total Financial Liabilities   237,158   -   5,330   231,828   237,158  237,158 

(d) Market Risk Exposure
QEC’s exposure to market risk is mainly through interest rate risks.

QEC assess the currency risk and other prices as insignificant, because the Centre undertakes all transactions in australian dollars and have no financial 

assets or financial liabilities subject to changes due to volatility in the market. objectives, policies and processes used to manage each of these risks are 

disclosed as follows.

Policy on Managing the Interest Rate Risk
 the objective of managing market risk is to minimise negative impacts on financial assets value due to the volatility of variables, mainly due to changes in 

the interest rates.

Policy in Managing Other Price Risk
When investments are made in shares and other equity instruments, QEC appoints external investment managers to monitor the volatility of 

stock market investments in light of performance benchmarks. the investment managers are expected to manage this risk, through the appropriate 

diversification of specific stocks and diversification through different asset classes as per the mandated allocations.  all investments must comply with 

QEC’s investment strategy.

investment performance reports are presented to the Finance Committee on a monthly basis.

Sensitivity analysis on the return, to interest rate Exposure

                          Interest Rate Risk
 Carrying Amount   -1% (100 basis points)    +1% (100 basis points) 
 $  $   $   $   $ 

2008

Financial Assets   Profit   Equity   Profit   Equity 

Cash and cash equivalents (i)  197,114   (1,971)  (1,971)  1,971   1,971 

other financial assets (ii)  1,890,657   (18,907)  (18,907)  18,907   18,907 

Financial Liabilities

interest bearing liabilities (iii)  8,039   80   80   (80)  (80)

(i) Sensitivity of cash and cash equivalents to a +1% movement in rates: ie (197,114 x .07-197,114 x .06) = $1,971.  Similarly for a   -1% movement the 

impact is $(1,971).

(ii) Sensitivity of other financial assets to a +1% movement in rates: ie (1,890,657 x 0.07-1,890,657 x 0.06) = $18,907. Similarly for a -1% movement the 

impact is $(18,907). 

(iii) Sensitivity of interest bearing liabilities to a +1% movement in rates: ie (8,039 x 0.19-8,039 x 0.18) = $(80). Similarly for a -1% movement the impact 

is $80.

2008 QEC annual rEport
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note 17: Contingent assets and liabilities
there were no contingent assets or contingent liabilities for QEC as at 30 June 2008
there were no contingent assets or contingent liabilities for QEC as at 30 June 2007

note 18: Segment reporting
Business Segment  Services 
Early parenting Services   provider of Early parenting Services and Education 

Geographical Segment
the QEC operates predominantly in noble park, Victoria.  more than 90% of revenue, net surplus from ordinary activities and segment assets relate to 
operations in noble park, Victoria

note 19: responsible persons and Executive officer Disclosures 
note 19a responsible persons Disclosures

   Period

Responsible Ministers   
   the honourable lisa neville  1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 

Board Members
the names of persons who were board members at any time during the financial year 
   mr. Bruce morley - president   1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   ms. Dale Fisher - Vice president    1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   mr. keith lambert  - Vice president  1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   ms. Susan harper oam - Vice president  1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   ms. hannah Crawford - Vice president (from 1 nov 2007)  1/11/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   assoc. prof. Campbell paul   1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   mr. timothy Staker  1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   Dr. lakshmi Sumithran  1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   ms. Gaye Britt   1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   Dr. larry osbourne  1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   mrs. Shelley racine  1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 
   mr. antonio Salce  1/7/2007 - 30/6/2008 

 2008 2007
   $   $ 

Accountable Officer
 ms. pam Stilling - Chief Executive officer (until 11 august 2006)  -   96,355 
p Stilling outgoing remuneration includes bonus, two years back-pay increase, annual and long service leave.
 ms. robyn Gillis - Chief Executive officer  136,072   130,792 
Remuneration of Responsible persons
 total remuneration received or due or receivable by responsible persons   -   - 
amounts relating to the responsible minister are reporting in the Financial Statements of the Victorian  
Department of premier and Cabinet.

Retirement Benefits of Responsible Persons
 retirement benefits paid in connection with the retirement of responsible persons of the reporting entity  -   - 

Other Transactions of Responsible Persons and their Related Parties
 related party transactions  -   - 

note 19b Executive officer Disclosures

Executive Officers’ Remuneration
the number of executive officers, other than ministers and accountable officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown in 
the table below.

 2008 2007

$100,000 - $109,999  1   1 

Total	 	1		 	1	

Total Remuneration $108,986 $102,962

2008 QEC annual rEport
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